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1 Plaintiff Aetna Life Insurance Company on Its Own Behalf and as Claims Administrator for 

2 Self-Funded Plan Sponsors (hereafter "ALIC"), by and through their counsel, Berman De Valerio and 

3 Sprague & Sprague, alleges upon personal knowledge and upon information and belief, the following 

4 causes of action against defendants and avers the following in support thereof. 

5 SUMMARY OF ACTION 

6 1. ALIC is a healthcare insurer that strives to guarantee its members high quality, 

7 comprehensive healthcare from well-qualified physicians and medical professionals, at well-equipped 

8 and professionally staffed hospitals and ancillary medical facilities, and at affordable premiums. As 

9 discussed in more detail below, ALIC offers benefit plans that provide benefits for "in-network" 

10 services rendered by a network of"participating" providers and "out-of-network" services rendered by 

11 "non-participating" providers. ALIC's benefit plans require ALIC members to contribute to the cost of 

12 care for "out-of-network" services rendered by non-participating providers through the payment of 

13 coinsurance, deductibles and other patient responsibility. 

14 2. Defendants are the owners and/or operators and/or managers of ancillary medical 

15 facilities at which physicians perform outpatient surgeries (also known as ambulatory surgical clinics 

16 ("ASCs") or outpatient clinics). Many of these same physicians are ALIC participating providers who 

17 own an interest in one or more defendant facilities ("ALIC participating physician-investors"). This 

18 lawsuit involves instances where ALIC participating physician-investors have referred their ALIC 

19 member patients to a facility defendant, a non-participating provider in which these physicians have 

20 invested and which sets its own fee for services, and these physician-investors receive a substantial 

21 portion of the defendant's profits. To induce ALIC members to use a defendant facility's out-of-

22 network services, the defendant waives the patient member's coinsurance and otherwise relieves the 

23 members from obligation to pay their charges. Each facility defendant then submits a health insurance 

24 claim to ALIC without disclosing that it has waived the member's portion of its charge or otherwise 

25 relieved the member from any obligation for its charge. 

26 3. Defendants' billing scheme is illegal inasmuch as it results in fraudulently billing ALIC, 

27 see, e.g, infra paragraphs 89-93, and fraudulently concealing from ALIC's members the dramatically 

28 increased financial cost to those members of using defendants' facilities in order for defendants to reap 
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1 illegal and exorbitant profits in gross violation of California statutes and common law. Indeed, as set 

2 forth in more detail below, defendants' scheme, exclusive of defendant Pacific Heights Surgery Center, 

3 has resulted in their receipt from ALIC of aJ?proximately $23 million for approximately 1900 

4 procedures, the costs for which should have only approximated $3 million-- a 771% increase. 

5 4. Moreover, defendants' billing scheme violates California law in several respects. First, 

6 the scheme violates California's explicit proscription against the offer and/or payment of money by the 

7 defendants to its ALIC participating physician-investors as compensation or inducement for the latter's 

8 referral of ALIC members. Second, the scheme directly violates California's prohibition against ALIC 

9 participating physician-investors' referring ALIC members to a facility defendant without first 

10 disclosing in writing to the member the physician-investor's ownership interest in the facility 

11 defendant. Third, the scheme runs afoul of California's proscription against the submission of false or 

12 misleading claims to an insurer, like ALIC. Fourth, the scheme violates California's prohibition 

13 against the employment of persons to procure patients to obtain benefits under a contract of insurance 

14 or that will be the basis for a claim against an insured individual or his or her insurer. Finally, the 

15 scheme violates California's policy against the corporate practice of medicine. 

16 5. Defendants' scheme of billing at unreasonable and inflated rates deprives ALIC 

17 members of the ability to make intelligent healthcare choices. By illegally striking at the very financial 

18 core of ALIC's managed care network, their scheme also recklessly subverts and imperils ALIC's well-

19 structured and successfully functioning managed care network made up of subscribers, medical care 

20 providers and medical facilities, which has heretofore served as a proven process for delivering 

21 excellent, affordable healthcare to citizens of California. The undermining of ALIC's managed care 

22 process is the result of defendants' interference with ALIC's contractual relationships with its own 

23 members and participating physicians. Further, defendants' scheme has tortiously deprived ALIC of 

24 tens of millions of dollars to which it is entitled. 

25 6. On November 1, 2011, ALIC filed a formal complaint with the California Medical 

26 Board ("Medical Board") regarding defendants' business practices pursuant to California Business and 

27 Profession Code Section 2220.08, et seq. The issues discussed above in paragraphs two through five 

28 were presented to the Medical Board in ALIC's regulatory complaint. 
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1 7. For the reasons set forth in more detail below, defendants' scheme must be promptly 

2 declared illegal to preclude its continuation and replication throughout California, and to avoid the 

3 potential consequences of irreparably damaging a system ofhealthcare delivery on which millions of 

4 citizens rely and at a time when the continued access of those citizens to affordable quality healthcare is 

5 critical. Additionally, defendants must be made to compensate ALIC for the enormous financial 

6 damage they have caused to date. 

7 JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

8 8. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to the 

9 California Constitution, Article VI, Section 10, because this case is not given by statute to other trial 

10 courts. 

11 9. This Comi has jurisdiction over the defendants in this case because each facility 

12 defendant is headquartered in this State, is organized under the laws of this State, and because the 

13 unlawful conduct alleged in this Complaint occurred in and/or was directed at this State. Fmihermore, 

14 this Court has jurisdiction over each defendant because their wrongful conduct challenged in this 

15 Complaint was directed at, and intended to have its primary effect in, this State. Finally, the individual 

16 defendants reside in California. 

17 10. Venue lies in this Court because one or more of the defendants' principal place of 

18 business is located within Santa Clara County and one or more of the defendants' wrongful acts 

19 occurred in substantial part in, or were directed toward, Santa Clara County. Venue is also proper in 

20 this Court because many of those affected by the defendants' wrongful conduct reside in this County, 

21 and many potential witnesses reside or work in this County. 

22 THE PARTIES 

23 11. Plaintiff ALIC is a Connecticut corporation with its principal place of business located 

24 at 151 Farmington Avenue, Hartford, CT 06156. ALIC conducts its business nationwide, including in 

25 the State of California. 

26 12. Defendant Bay Area Surgical Management, LLC (hereafter "BASM") is a California 

27 limited liability company with a principal place of business located at 106 Heinz Ct., Los Gatos, CA 

28 95032, and which manages six (6) ancillary medical facilities (or ASCs) at which outpatient surgeries 
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1 are performed. BASM manages six (6) of the defendant ASCs, Bay Area Surgical Group, Inc., Forest 

2 Surgery Center, LP, SOAR Surgery Center, LLC, Knowles Surgery Center, LLC, National Ambulatory 

3 Surgery Center, LLC, and Los Altos Surgery Center (collectively, the "BASM ASCs" or "BASM 

4 facilities"). 

5 13. Defendant Bay Area Surgical Group, Inc. (hereafter "BASG") is a California 

6 corporation with a principal place of business located at 2222 Lafayette Street, Suite 101, Santa Clara, 

7 CA 95050. BASG owns and operates an ASC at that address at which outpatient surgeries are 

8 performed. Defendant Javad Zolfaghari is the President and CEO ofBASG. 

9 14. Defendant Forest Surgery Center, LP (hereafter "Forest Surgery") is a California limited 

10 partnership with a principal place ofbusiness located at 2110 Forest Avenue, Suite 2, San Jose, CA 

11 95128. Forest Surgery owns and operates an ASC at that address at which outpatient surgeries are 

12 performed. 

13 15. Defendant SOAR Surgery Center, LLC (hereafter "SOAR") is a California limited 

14 liability company with a principal place ofbusiness located at 1849 Bayshore Highway, 3rd Floor, 

15 Burlingame, CA 94010. SOAR owns and operates an ASC at that address at which outpatient surgeries 

16 are performed. 

17 16. Defendant Knowles Surgery Center, LLC (hereafter "Knowles Surgery") is a California 

18 limited liability company with a principal place of business located at 555 Knowles Drive, Suite 115, 

19 Los Gatos, CA 95032. Knowles Surgery owns and operates an ASC at that address at which outpatient 

20 surgeries are performed. 

21 17. Defendant National Ambulatory Surgery Center, LLC (hereafter "National 

22 Ambulatory") is a California limited liability company with a principal place of business located at 

23 15251 National Avenue, No. 207, Los Gatos, CA 95032. National Ambulatory owns and operates an 

24 ASC at that address at which outpatient surgeries are performed. 

25 18. Defendant Los Altos Surgery Center, Limited Partnership (hereafter "Los Altos 

26 Surgery") is a California limited partnership with a principal place of business located at 795 Altos 

27 Oaks Drive, Los Altos, CA 94024. Los Altos owns and operates an ASC at that address at which 

28 outpatient surgeries are performed. 
4 

COMPLAINT 



1 19. Defendant Pacific Heights Surgery Center (hereafter "Pacific Heights") is a California 

2 limited liability corporation, with a principal place of business located at 3000 California Street, Second 

3 Floor, San Francisco, CA 94115. Pacific Heights owns and operates an ASC at that address at which 

4 outpatient surgeries are performed. 

5 20. Defendants Julia Hashemieh, Robert Samevesht and Javad Zolfaghari are the co-

6 founders, managing members and principals of BASM and operate from BASM' s principal place of 

7 business at 106 Heinz Ct., Los Gatos, CA 95032. Defendants Hashemieh, Samevesht and Zolfaghari 

8 are residents of the State of California. Defendant Hashemieh is the registered agent for BASM. 

9 21. ALIC is ignorant of the true names and capacities of the Defendants sued under the 

10 fictitious names DOES ONE through ONE HUNDRED inclusive. The DOE Defendants engaged in 

11 the wrongful acts alleged and also proximately caused ALIC's damages. 

12 22. At all times material and relevant hereto, defendants BASM, BASG, Forest Surgery, 

13 SOAR, Knowles Surgery, National Ambulatory and Los Altos Surgery were acting through their 

14 agents, ostensible agents, servants and/or employees, including defendants Hashemieh, Samevesht and 

15 Zolfaghari, who were acting within the scope of their authority, under the control or right to control of 

· 16 BASM, BASG, Forest Surgery, SOAR, Knowles Surgery, National Ambulatory and Los Altos Surgery, 

17 and in furtherance of the business ofthose defendants. 

18 23. At all times material and relevant hereto, defendants Hashemieh, Samevesht and 

19 Zolfaghari were acting as the agents, ostensible agents, servants and/or employees ofBASM, BASG, 

20 Forest Surgery, SOAR, Knowles Surgery, National Ambulatory and Los Altos Surgery, and were 

21 acting within the scope of their authority and in furtherance of the business of those defendants and 

22 under their control or right of control. 

23 24. At all times material and relevant hereto, defendant Pacific Heights was acting through 

24 its agents, ostensible agents, servants and/or employees, who were acting within the scope of their 

25 authority, under the control or right to control of Pacific Heights, and in furtherance of the business of 

26 Pacific Heights. 

27 

28 
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1 

2 25. 

CONSPIRACY, AIDING AND ABETTING AND CONCERTED ACTION 

In committing the wrongful acts alleged herein, each ofthe defendants (excluding 

3 Pacific Heights) has pursued, or joined in the pursuit of, a common course of conduct, and acted in 

4 concert with and conspired with one another, in furtherance of their common plan or design. In 

5 addition to the wrongful conduct herein alleged as giving rise to primary liability, the defendants 

6 (excluding Pacific Heights) further aided and abetted and/or assisted each other in breach oftheir 

7 respective duties herein alleged. 

8 26. During all relevant times hereto, the defendants (excluding Pacific Heights), and each of 

9 them, initiated a course of conduct which was designed to and did (i) lead to the submission of 

10 fraudulent bills to ALIC and (ii) violate California law that proscribes the self-referral, kick-back, and 

11 fraudulent insurance practices involved herein. 

12 27. Each of the defendants (excluding Pacific Heights) herein aided and abetted and 

13 rendered substantial assistance in the wrongs complained of herein. In taking such actions, as 

14 particularized herein, to substantially assist the commission of the wrongdoing complained of, each 

15 defendant (excluding Pacific Heights) acted with knowledge of the primary wrongdoing, substantially 

16. assisted the accomplishment of that wrongdoing, and was aware ofhis or her overall contribution to, 

17 and furtherance of, the wrongdoing. The defendants' (excluding Pacific Heights) acts or aiding and 

18 abetting included, inter alia, the acts each of them are alleged to have committed in furtherance ofthe 

19 conspiracy, common enterprise and common course of conduct complained of herein. 

20 FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

21 

22 

A. 

28. 

The Delivery Of Affordable Health Care Benefits Through Provider Networks 

ALIC offers and operates health benefit Plans which provide health benefits to the 

23 employee-members of employer-groups and to individual ALIC members throughout the United States, 

24 including California, and pays health insurance claims on behalf of those members. 

25 29. ALIC's plans include "managed care" plans under which ALIC delivers comprehensive 

26 medical benefits through a "network" of medical providers who have contracted with ALIC to provide 

27 services to plan beneficiaries. 

28 
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1 30. The importance of provider networks in the delivery of affordable healthcare insurance 

2 to consumers is widely recognized. It is also a recognized fact that a health service corporation, like 

3 ALIC, must have the ability to control costs. Providing affordable health care coverage is directly 

4 related to the number of medical providers participating in ALIC's network. 

5 31. ALIC strives to guarantee that its members, whether individuals or the employees of 

6 subscriber-employers, can secure high quality, comprehensive healthcare from well-qualified 

7 physicians and medical professionals, at well-equipped and professionally staffed hospitals and 

8 ancillary medical facilities, including ASCs, and at affordable premiums. 

9 32. As explained below, ALIC endeavors to accomplish that goal through a comprehensive 

10 contract-based "network" which includes subscribers, physicians and other medical professionals, 

11 medical practice groups, hospitals and other ancillary medical facilities. 

12 33. While some competitor plans may not provide coverage for services provided "out-of-

13 network," ALIC's plans do. However, as explained in more detail below, ALIC's plans generally 

14 require its members to pay a higher portion of the cost of out-of-network services through higher 

15 deductibles and coinsurance. 

16 

17 34. 

1. "In-Network" Benefits for Services Rendered by "Participating" Providers 

Medical providers who enter into contracts with an insurer to provide medical services 

18 to the insurer's members are commonly referred to as "participating" providers. 

19 35. The contracts between the insurer and the participating provider require the provider to 

20 accept negotiated fees as payment in full for covered services. 

21 36. The member may have the financial obligation of a coinsurance under the terms of his or 

22 her ALIC benefit plan which is significantly lower than his or her coinsurance obligation for out-of-

23 network services, as discussed below. 

24 37. The agreements between the insurer and its participating providers benefit the insurer, 

25 the member, and the pruiicipating provider. 

26 38. The contract allows the insurer to deliver healthcare benefits efficiently through its 

27 provider network, to anticipate and control the costs of cru·e, to reduce the financial risk for its plans 

28 and plan sponsors, and to promote the quality of care through its credentialing processes. 
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1 39. The member, or covered person, receives affordable healthcare from qualified providers 

2 with little or no out-of-pocket cost or financial risk 

3 40. Participating providers receive direct payment from the insurer under their agreements 

4 and avoid the risk and costs of collection from individual patients. In addition, they gain greater access 

5 to a broader volume of patients, and receive the benefit of ALIC's brand and marketing and are 

6 identified in the ALIC provider directories which are widely distributed to ALIC members. 

7 

8 

9 41. 

2. "Out-of-Network" Benefits for Services Rendered by "Non- Participating" 
Providers 

Medical providers who have not entered into contracts with the insurer are commonly 

1 0 referred to as "non-participating" providers. 

11 42. Unlike participating providers, non-participating providers have not agreed to accept 

12 negotiated rates as payment in full for services; they set their own fees for services rendered to patients 

13 subject only to the regulations which govern their practices. 

14 43. Some insurance benefit plans may not cover services provided by non-participating 

15 providers and those that do cover these services require patients to pay a significant portion of the non-

16 participating provider's charge through application of coinsurance, deductibles, and other patient 

17 responsibility. 

18 

19 

20 44. 

3. Coinsurance, Deductibles, and Other Patient Responsibility for the Cost of 
"Out-of-Network" Services 

Health benefit plans that provide for out-of-network services require the covered person 

21 to contribute to the cost of care through the payment of deductibles, coinsurance, and other patient 

22 responsibility. 

23 45. Health benefit plans that provide for out-of-network coverage typically require the 

24 member to pay between 20% to 50% (as coinsurance) of the reasonable charge for services rendered by 

25 an out-of-network provider as determined by ALIC. Thus, for example, ifthe reasonable charge by an 

26 out-of-network provider for a covered service is $100,000, then the member's coinsurance 

27 responsibility generally would be no less than $20,000 and no more than $50,000. Further, the member 

28 
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1 is also typically held financially responsible for the amount of any charge which exceeds the reasonable 

2 value of the services. 

3 46. Insurers ordinarily reimburse only a portion of covered charges for out-of-network 

4 services; the member is directly responsible to the out-of-network provider for the charges that are not 

5 covered by the plan or exceed the reimbursement paid by the insurer. These amounts are commonly 

6 referred to as the "patient responsibility" for which a provider will "balance bill" the member. 

7 47. The plan provisions that require the member to pay coinsurance, deductibles, and other 

8 portions of the out-of-network provider's charges for services are intended to sensitize the member to 

9 the cost of his or her healthcare, leading him or her not only to use healthcare judiciously but also to 

1 0 seek out providers with lower fees, which makes health insurance less expensive. 

11 48. In prohibiting the waiver of the patient's portion of the provider's charge, the 

12 Department of Health and Human Services, Office oflnspector General, explains that "[s]tudies have 

13 shown that if patients are required to pay even a small portion of their care, they will be better health 

14 care consumers, and select items or services because they are medically needed rather than simply 

15 because they are free." DHHS, OIG, Special Fraud Alert: Routine Waiver of Copayments and 

16 Deductibles Under Medicare Part B (Issued May 1991). 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

49. The Medicare "Special Fraud Alert" issued by the Department of Health and Human 

Services, Office of Inspector General, further states that the routine waiver of the patient's portion of a 

provider's charge is unlawful "because it results in false claims, violations of the anti-kickback statute 

and excessive utilization of services." The "Alert" explains: 

A provider, practitioner or supplier who routinely waives Medicare copayments 
or deductibles is misstating its actual charge. For example, if a supplier claims 
that its charge for a piece of equipment is $100, but routinely waives the co
payment, the actual charge is $80. Medicare should be paying 80 percent of $80 
(or $64 ), rather than 80 percent of $100 (or $80). As a result of the supplier's 
misrepresentation, the Medicare program is paying $16 more than it should for 
this item. 

In certain cases, a provider, practitioner or supplier who routinely waives 
Medicare copayments or deductibles also could be held liable under the Medicare 
and Medicaid anti-kickback statute. 42 U.S.C. 1320a-7b(b). The statute makes it 
illegal to offer, pay, solicit or receive anything of value as an inducement to 
generate business payable by Medicare or Medicaid. When providers, 
practitioners or suppliers forgive financial obligations for reasons other than 

9 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

genuine financial hardship of the particular patient, they may be unlawfully 
inducing that patient to purchase items or services from them. 

At first glance, it may appear that the routine waiver of copayments and 
deductibles helps Medicare beneficiaries. By waiving Medicare copayments and 
deductibles, the provider of services may claim that the beneficiary incurs no 
costs. In fact, this is not true. Studies have shown that if patients are required to 
pay even a small portion of their care, they will be better health care consumers, 
and select items or services because they are medically needed, rather than simply 
because they are free. Ultimately, if Medicare pays more for an item or service 
than it should, or if it pays for unnecessary items or services, there are less 
Medicare funds available to pay for truly needed services. 

DHHS, OIG, Special Fraud Alert: Routine Waiver ofCopayments and Deductibles Under Medicare 

Part B (Issued May 1991). 

50. The plan provisions that govem out-of-network services also control the cost of care and 

10 protect the insurer's network of participating medical providers by encouraging patients to use in-

11 network services. Because they can obtain quality healthcare services from participating providers at 

12 little or no out-of-pocket expense, members have good reason to select in-network services rendered by 

13 participating providers. 

14 51. Conversely, medical providers would have less reason to participate in an insurer's 

15 network (and to accept negotiated limits on their fees) if members could obtain out-of-network services 

16 from non-participating providers without paying coinsurance, deductibles or other patient 

17 responsibility. 

18 

19 

B. 

52. 

ALIC's Network 

ALIC contracts with physicians, medical professionals, medical practice groups, 

20 hospitals and other ancillary medical facilities, including ASCs. 

21 53. In exchange for greater access to a broader volume and population of patients, those 

22 participating providers agree to provide healthcare to ALIC members and to be subject to certain cost 

23 controls (e.g., a negotiated "allowed or contracted amount" as payment in full for services provided to 

24 ALIC members; collecting coinsurance, co-payments and deductibles from those members; and/or 

25 obtaining pre-cetiification from ALIC before rendering services to those members). 

26 54. By choosing to contract with ALIC to become a participating provider -- and thus an in-

27 network provider of health services to ALIC members-- those participating providers gain access to 

28 ALIC members as patients. 
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1 55. Furthermore, as a result of the contracts negotiated with the participating providers, 

2 overall healthcare costs are generally reduced as discussed above, which enables ALIC to secure lower 

3 premiums for its members who then have economical access to a host of quality healthcare providers. 

4 Participating providers, in turn, have more patients because their services are more affordable to ALIC 

5 members. Further, they receive the benefit of ALIC's brand and marketing and are identified in the 

6 ALIC provider directories which are available and/or distributed to ALIC members. 

7 

8 

c. 

56. 

ALIC's Plans 

ALIC's benefit plans provide that the member may elect to receive healthcare services 

9 out-of-network, or from a physician or medical professional who does not participate in the ALIC 

10 network, and/or receive those services at a hospital or other medical facility which does not participate 

11 in the ALIC network. 

12 57. However, because ALIC has no contract with the out-of-network providers, out-of-

13 network providers charge rates for the services they provide to ALIC members which exceed the rates 

14 ALIC sets with its in-network providers. 

15 58. As a result, because the medical care provided to ALIC members by out-of-network 

16 physicians and medical professionals at out-of-network hospitals or other medical facilities is not 

17 subject to any cost controls set by contract, the cost for such out-of-network care and treatment is 

18 substantially higher than the cost ofthe same medical care provided to members by in-network 

19 providers. 

20 59. Moreover, out-of-network providers, including each BASM ASC and Pacific Heights, 

21 are required by law to accept a "reasonable" charge for their services. California law requires that a 

22 reasonable charge must be based upon statistically credible information that is updated at least annually 

23 and takes into consideratioJ.?-: the provider's training, qualifications, and length oftime in practice; the 

24 nature of the services provided; the fees usually charged by the provider; prevailing provider rates in 

25 the general geographic area in which services were rendered; other aspects of the economics of the 

26 medical provider's practice that are relevant; and any unusual circumstances in the case. Cal. Code 

27 Regs. Tit. 28, Section 1300.71(a)(3); see also Prospect Med. Group, Inc. v. Northridge Emergency 

28 Med. Group, 45 Cal. 4th 497, 508, 198 P.3d 86, 93, 87 Cal. Rptr. 3d 299, 307 (2009) ("[E]mergency 
11 
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1 room doctors do not have unfettered discretion to charge whatever they choose for emergency services 

2 ... [A]lthough emergency room doctors 'are entitled to "reasonable" compensation for the services 

3 rendered, they cannot lawfully seek unreasonable payment from anyone."'). 

4 60. ALIC's benefit plans typically define a covered charge by an out-of-network provider 

5 as the lesser of the provider's actual charge for services, or the reasonable or "recognized charge" 

6 amount determined by ALIC pursuant to the terms and conditions of the member plan. In some 

7 circumstances, ALIC may have an agreement with a provider (either directly, or indirectly through a 

8 third party) which sets the rate that Aetna will pay for a service or supply. In these instances, the 

9 recognized charge is the rate established in such agreement. 

10 61. Pursuant to the terms ofthe ALIC benefit plans and policies of insurance, the member is 

11 responsible for coinsurance, payment of charges which are not covered by the plan, or amounts which 

12 exceed the reimbursement paid by ALIC. A true and correct copy of one such ALIC benefit plan is 

13 Exhibit "A" hereto. 

14 62. The amount by which the out-of-network provider's charge exceeds the amount payable 

15 under the plan is the "balance bill" discussed above. The potential for "balance billing" by out-of-

16 network providers acts as an incentive for the member to utilize ALIC's in-network providers when 

17 medically feasible and appropriate. 

18 63. When out-of-network providers such as the defendant BASM facilities submit health 

19 insurance claims to ALIC for services rendered to ALIC members, the charges for services rendered 

20 must be reasonable, and must represent the true charge for services rendered. 

21 64. Because the unchecked election of subscribers to utilize out-of-network rather in-

22 network providers would dramatically increase ALIC's reimbursement obligations and necessitate an 

23 increase in the premiums of all subscribers, ALIC's benefit plans (and those of other health insurers) 

24 incentivize ALIC's members to utilize in-network providers rather than out-of-network providers when 

25 medically feasible and appropriate. 

26 65. ALIC's benefit plans do so by requiring members to pay a higher co-insurance when 

27 using out-of-network providers, and to be responsible for charges which exceed the reimbursement paid 

28 
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1 by ALIC. By requiring members to have "skin. in the game," consumers become better educated about 

2 the true costs of their healthcare and ALIC can keep premiums lower. 

3 66. Additionally, ALIC's contracts with its in-network providers contractually bind those 

4 providers to refer members to other in-network physicians, medical professionals, hospitals or other 

5 ancillary medical facilities, where medically feasible and appropriate, to save costs and ensure quality. 

6 Indeed, ALIC's in-network providers must meet ALIC's strict credentialing criteria. 

7 67. Through the use of the contractual safeguards noted above, ALIC members retain the 

8 freedom to utilize out-of-network providers where they deem it in their interest, but the ALIC network 

9 of participating providers retains its viability and capability for providing members with quality 

10 healthcare and lower healthcare costs in the form of reduced premiums. 

11 

12 

13 

D. 

68. 

Defendants' Assault on ALIC's Provider Network By Non-Participating ASCs and 
Their ALIC Participating Physician-Investors 

Each individual defendant and BASM manages, owns and/or operates the BASM 

14 ASCs, or has an ownership interest in one ofthe BASM ASCs. 

15 69. Each of the defendant BASM facilities and Pacific Heights has chosen not to become a 

16 member of the ALIC network. 

17 70. As discussed above, ALIC provides benefit plans that allow members to obtain out-of-

18 network benefits for services rendered by non-participating providers. These benefit plans require the 

19 member to pay deductibles, coinsurance and other portions of the charges for these out-of-network 

20 services. 

21 71. The BASM ASCs and Pacific Heights are non-participating providers at which ALIC in-

22 network participating physicians and other medical providers perform outpatient surgical procedures on 

23 ALIC members. 

24 72. Because the BASM ASCs and Pacific Heights are non-participating providers, the ALIC 

25 benefit plans require the member to pay a portion of the total fee each BASM ASC and Pacific Heights 

26 charges for services provided to the member. The ALIC benefit plans generally impose application of 

27 coinsurance on the member for approximately 20% to 30% ofthe reasonable value of the facility fee 

28 
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1 charged by each BASM ASC and Pacific Heights. And, as noted above, these plans require members 

2 to pay for any charges which exceed Aetna's reimbursement of the reasonable value. 

3 73. Certain ALIC in-network participating physicians hold ownership interests in the BASM 

4 ASCs or Pacific Heights and have maintained these ownership interests while they have enjoyed the 

5 advantages of participating in ALIC's network. While doing so, ALIC members had access to the 

6 BASM facility's or Pacific Heights' services at little or no out-of-pocket expense because the 

7 defendants routinely waive application of member coinsurance and other patient responsibility. 

8 

9 

10 74. 

1. The Self-Referral of ALIC Members By ALIC Participating Physician
Investors to Non-Participating BASM ASCs or Pacific Heights 

When ALIC members require outpatient surgery, the ALIC participating physician-

11 investors refer them to a BASM ASC or Pacific Heights, a non-participating provider in which the 

12 participating physician holds an ownership interest, in return for an increased equity interest and a 

13 greater share of its profits. 

14 75. The compensation paid to the ALIC participating physician-investor by the BASM ASC 

15 or Pacific Heights depends on the number and profitability of their referrals. Thus, there is a direct 

16 nexus between the ALIC physician-investor's percentage interest in the BASM ASC or Pacific Heights 

17 and the income the BASM ASC or Pacific Heights expects him to generate for the BASM ASC or 

18 Pacific Heights through the self-referral of the physician's ALIC members. 

19 76. The amount of the incentive or referral fee that BASM ASCs or Pacific Heights pay the 

20 ALIC participating physician-investors for their referrals is substantial. In one instance, a BASM ASC 

21 provided an ALIC participating physician an annual bonus check in the amount of $980,000. 

22 Physicians have been promised 805% return on investment, and greater. 

23 

24 

25 77. 

2. The Waiver of Coinsurance, Deductibles and Other Patient Responsibility 
by the Non-Participating BASM ASCs 

To induce ALIC members to agree to the non-participating ASC facility, BASM ASCs 

26 and Pacific Heights routinely waive all coinsurance and other patient responsibility under ALIC's 

27 benefit plans, and relieve the member of financial responsibility for portions of the charge for services 

28 by the BASM ASCs or Pacific Heights. 
14 
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1 78. ALIC's benefit plans generally require the member to pay 20% to 30% of the BASM 

2 ASC's or Pacific Heights' reasonable charges for its services through coinsurance, deductibles and 

3 other patient responsibility. 

4 79. BASM ASCs and Pacific Heights routinely do not charge the ALIC members for the 

5 members' portion of the ASCs' fees. 

6 80. BASM ASCs and Pacific Heights instead routinely instruct ALIC members that the 

7 members will not be balanced billed and are not responsible for the payment of deductibles, 

8 coinsurance and other patient responsibility. 

9 81. Moreover, the ALIC participating physician-investors fail to adequately disclose to the 

10 ALIC members that the physician-investor has an ownership or a financial interest and/or an incentive 

11 to refer the member to the BASM ASC or Pacific Heights. 

12 

13 

14 

15 82. 

3. Submission of Health Insurance Claims by the Non- Participating BASM 
ASCs and Pacific Heights that Misrepresent Their Charges and Fail to 
Disclose Their Routine Waiver of Coinsurance, Deductibles and Other 
Patient Responsibility 

For each outpatient surgery performed at BASM ASCs or Pacific Heights on ALIC 

16 members, the ALIC participating physician-investors submit a health insurance claim form to ALIC for 

17 his or her "professional fee" for the surgical procedure. 

18 83. BASM ASCs and Pacific Heights submit to ALIC separate health insurance claim 

19 forms for their "facility fee" for the use of their facilities and related supplies associated with the care 

20 provided to ALIC members. 

21 84. The health insurance claim form used by BASM ASCs and Pacific Heights requires 

22 them to state their "charges" for the use of their facility for each procedure involving ALIC members. 

23 85. Coinsurance, deductibles and other patient responsibility are the portion of BASM 

24 ASCs' and Pacific Heights' charges for which the ALIC members are responsible. 

25 86. As set forth above, although these amounts (coinsurance, deductibles and other patient 

26 responsibility) are included in the BASM ASCs' and Pacific Heights' aggregate "charges" billed to 

27 ALIC, as part of the scheme alleged, they do not intend to collect or to bill the ALIC member for this 

28 patient portion of their charges. 
15 
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1 87. Moreover, the BASM ASCs and Pacific Heights never disclose to ALIC that they have 

2 waived the member's payment of coinsurance and other patient responsibility. 

3 88. Because BASM ASCs and Pacific Heights routinely waive the ALIC members' 

4 coinsurance and other patient responsibility, they inflate their charges submitted to ALIC without 

5 objection from the ALIC member. 

6 89. Similarly, pursuant to their scheme, the charges submitted by the BASM facilities and 

7 Pacific Heights to ALIC were, and are, artificially inflated charges because the facility does not collect, 

8 nor does it intend to collect, any member portion of the charges submitted by BASM ASCs or Pacific 

9 Heights. The facilities' charges are artificially inflated because they are much greater than the amount 

10 the facility expects to be paid (an amount that would cover their costs plus a reasonable profit), which 

11 is reflected by the fact that the facility does not collect those charges from the member. Under ALIC's 

12 benefit plans, ALIC has no obligation to pay charges for services that are not actually incurred by, or 

13 charged to, the member and defendants' charges are thus false, inflated, and unreasonable under 

14 California law. 

15 90. For example, Exhibit "C" reflects the claims data for BASG from October 2008 

16 through September 2011, paid by ALIC through September 2011. During this period oftime, among 

17 the 324 total number of procedures that BASG submitted as charges to ALIC, is a charge BASG sent 

18 regarding the "correction ofbunion" for an ALIC member. Exhibit "C" (procedure 28299). In the 

19 claim form submitted by BASG, BASG represented that the "reasonable" facility charge for this 

20 procedure was $66,100. 

21 91. At the time BASG made this representation to ALIC, BASG knew that it was not going 

22 to collect the 20% coinsurance portion the ALIC member owed under the ALIC Plan for the facility 

23 charge for the bunion procedure .. Upon information and belief, BASG never did collect $10,576, or 

24 20% of the Total Allowed Amount (20% of $52,880 (total allowed amount)) from the ALIC member as 

25 BASG sought no coinsurance or other compensation of any other kind from the ALIC member. When 

26 BASG submitted its claim for $66,100, it did so with the intent and expectation that ALIC would remit 

27 payment for 80% ofthat total of$66,100 in accordance with that misrepresentation. 

28 
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1 92. After BASG submitted its claim for $66,100, ALIC did in fact remit payment to BASG 

2 in the amount of$52,880 (80% of$66,100)- an amount calculated based on the misrepresentation 

3 made by BASG that the normal and customary charge it was going to collect was $66,100 and that 

4 BASG expected and intended ALIC to pay at the time it submitted the claim to ALIC for payment. But 

5 for BASG's misrepresentation,ALIC should have been charged no more than $42,304 ($52,880 (total 

6 allowed amount) less $10,576 (the member's waived 20% coinsurance portion)). As a result, ALIC 

7 should not have been required to pay BASG more than $42,304 ($52,880 x ALIC's 80% 

8 responsibility). 

9 93. BASG was therefore successful in inducing ALIC to overpay for facility services 

10 provided to the ALIC member, and damaged ALIC at least in the amount of$10,576 ($52,880 (amount 

11 ALIC actually paid) less $42,304 (most ALIC should have been required to pay)). 

12 94. The example described above in paragraphs 89-93 illustrates the standard practice for 

13 each defendant facility ASC as memorialized in Exhibits "C" (BASG); "D" (Forest Surgery"); "E" 

14 (SOAR); "F" (National Ambulatory); "G" (Los Altos); "H" (Pacific Heights). Each time a defendant 

15 ASC submitted a claim for a service provided to an ALIC member, the amount charged did not 

16 accurately reflect the fact that the defendant was not going to collect the ALIC member's coinsurance, 

17 deductible, or other patient responsibility. Thus, the defendant ASC's representation was false and 

18 made with the intent to induce ALIC to overpay for the services provided to ALIC's member. Most of 

19 the times ALIC remitted payment to the defendant ASC in accordance with those false statements, 

20 ALIC was in fact damaged. 

21 95. In addition, the scheme of each defendant BASM facility (and Pacific Heights 

22 separately) includes (but, on information and belief, is not limited to) the following: 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

(a) 

(b) 

Inducing ALIC's participating physicians to obtain an equity interest in the 
defendant facilities and incentivizing these physicians to refer ALIC members to 
the BASM facilities or Pacific Heights in exchange for a return on investment 
which far exceeds fair market value. A true and correct copy of a BASM 
proforma document provided to one of ALIC's in-network physicians 
highlighting BASM's projected annualized return of investment of 805%, for 
example, is Exhibit "B" hereto; 

"Cherry-picking" by the BASM management team of those patients with the 
most substantial insurance benefits afforded by ALIC and other healthcare 
insurers, and directing the ALIC participating physician-investors who have an 

17 
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1 

2 

3. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

96. 

97. 

(c) 

(d) 

equity interest in the defendant ASCs to schedule these "cherry-picked" patients 
for surgery at a specified BASM facility; 

Remunerating ALIC's participating physicians in an amount materially in excess 
of the value of the services provided by those physicians or not commensurate 
with the fair market value of any premises or equipment provided to the 
defendant by that in-network physician; and, 

Establishing and maintaining business practices, profit sharing and accounting in 
violation of California's prohibition on the corporate practice of medicine. 

Prior to March 2010, ALIC did not reasonably suspect defendants' scheme. 

On or about March 2010, at a meeting of the California Ambulatory Surgery Association 

8 ("CASA"), an ALIC managerial employee was advised by an attendee that physicians had been given a 

9 document (a tme and correct of which is Exhibit "B" hereto) attempting to induce them to obtain an 

10 equity interest in one ofBASM's facilities and incentivizing the recipient physicians to refer insured 

11 members to that facility. Specifically, that"pro forma" document highlighted defendant National 

12 Ambulatory's projected annualized return on investment of805% to physician-investors. According to 

13 that attendee, potential physician-investors were also told that, if they were to obtain an equity interest 

14 in National Ambulatory, and if the physician-investor brought in only two "out-of-network" cases per 

15 month, the physician-investor could earn $15,000 monthly. 

16 98. Upon receiving that information from the CASA attendee in March 2010, ALIC 

17 commenced a preliminary investigation which resulted in ALIC's May 20, 2010 request to the Office 

18 ofthe Inspector General ofthe Department ofHealth and Human Services, the Attorney General of 

19 California, the Medical Board of California, and the California Department of Public Health that they 

20 commence an investigation into the arrangement contemplated by National Ambulatory's pro forma 

21 document. 

22 

23 

E. 

99. 

Increased Healthcare Costs and Financial Damage Caused by Defendants' Scheme 

By using illegal practices which constitute unfair competition, defendants' scheme has 

24 financially damaged ALIC by increasing the amount of out-of-network payments ALIC might 

25 otherwise be required to make. 

26 100. As a result of defendants' scheme, BASG received payments from ALIC for procedures 

27 performed at its ASC on ALIC members which were, on average, 1135% higher than ALIC paid its in-

28 network providers in the same geographic area for those same procedures. As set forth in the 
18 
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1 spreadsheet which is Exhibit "C" hereto, which compares the procedures performed at BASG' s ASC 

2 on ALIC members with those performed by ALIC's in-network providers in the same geographic area, 

3 and compares the allowed ALIC payments regarding same, BASG dramatically increased the cost of 

4 healthcare by approximately $4,895,945, which increases continue to accrue. 

5 101. As a result of defendants' scheme, Forest Surgery received payments from ALIC for 

6 procedures performed at its ASC on ALIC members which were, on average, 554% higher than ALIC 

7 paid its in-network providers in the same geographic area for those same procedures. As set forth in 

8 the spreadsheet which is Exhibit "D" hereto, which compares the procedures performed at Forest 

9 Surgery's ASC on ALIC members with those performed by ALIC's in-network providers in the same 

10 geographic area, and compares the allowed ALIC payments regarding same, Forest Surgery has 

11 dramatically increased the cost ofhealthcare by approximately $7,292,331, which increases continue to 

12 accrue. 

13 102. As a result of defendants' scheme, SOAR received payments from ALIC for procedures 

14 performed at its ASC on ALIC members which were, on average, 513% higher than ALIC paid its in-

15 network providers in the same geographic area for those same procedures. As set forth in the 

16 spreadsheet which is Exhibit "E" hereto, which compares the procedures performed at SOAR's ASC 

17 on ALIC members with those performed by ALIC's in-network providers in the same geographic area, 

18 and compares the allowed ALIC payments regarding same, SOAR has dramatically increased the cost 

19 ofhealthcare by approximately $1,554,459, which increases continue to accrue. 

20 103. As a result of defendants' scheme, National Ambulatory received payments from ALIC 

21 for procedures performed at its ASC on ALIC members which were, on average, 725% higher than 

22 ALIC paid its in-network providers in the same geographic area for those same procedures. As set 

23 forth in the spreadsheet which is Exhibit "F" hereto, which compares the procedures performed at 

24 National Ambulatory's ASC on ALIC members with those performed by ALIC's in-network providers 

25 in the same geographic area, and compares the allowed ALIC payments regarding same, National 

26 Ambulatory has dramatically increased the cost ofhealthcare by approximately $4,941,836, which 

27 increases continue to accrue. 

28 
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1 104. As a result of defendants' scheme, Los Altos received payments from ALIC for 

2 procedures performed at its ASC on ALIC members which were, on average, 1,030% higher than ALIC 

3 paid its in-network providers in the same geographic area for those same procedures. As set forth in 

4 the spreadsheet which is Exhibit "G" hereto, which compares the procedures performed at Los Altos 

5 ASC on ALIC members with those performed by ALIC's in-network providers in the same geographic 

6 area, and compares the allowed ALIC payments regarding same, Los Altos has dramatically increased 

7 the cost ofhealthcare by approximately $866,725, which increases continue to accrue. 

8 105. As a result of defendant's scheme, Pacific Heights received payments from ALIC for 

9 procedures performed at its ASC on ALIC members which were, on average, 560% higher than ALIC 

10 paid its in-network providers in the same geographic area for those same procedures. As set forth in 

11 the spreadsheet which is Exhibit "H" hereto, which compares the procedures performed at Pacific 

12 Heights on ALIC members with those performed by ALIC's in-network providers in the same 

13 geographic area, and compares the allowed ALIC payments regarding same, Pacific Heights has 

14 dramatically increased the cost ofhealthcare by approximately $2,991,364, which increases continue to 

15 accrue. 

16 106. As set forth in the spreadsheet which is Exhibit "I" hereto, which compares the 

17 procedures performed at all of the BASM ASC facilities, but for Knowles Surgery, on ALIC members 

18 with those performed by ALIC's in-network providers in the same geographic area, and compares the 

19 allowed payments regarding same, those BASM ASC facilities received payments which were, on 

20 average, 771% higher than ALIC paid its in-network providers in the same geographic area for those 

21 same procedures. 

22 107. ALIC avers, upon information and belief, that as a result of defendants' scheme, 

23 Knowles Surgery received payments from ALIC for procedures performed at its ASC on ALIC 

24 members which were, on average, an exorbitant percentage higher than ALIC paid its in-network 

25 providers in the same geographic area for those same procedures, and that Knowles Surgery caused 

26 dramatic increases in the cost of healthcare, which increases continue to accrue. 

27 

28 
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1 

2 

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION: 
Unfair Competition in Violation of the California 

Business and Professions Code Section 17200, et seq. 
(Against All Defendants) 

3 108. ALIC incorporates each of the foregoing paragraphs as though set forth at length. 

4 1 09. Defendants' scheme as set forth above constitutes an unlawful, unfair and fraudulent 

5 business practice in violation of the California Business and Professions Code, Section 17200, et seq., 

6 the Unfair Competition Law ("UCL"). 

7 110. Defendants' scheme is likewise an unlawful business practice because it violates 

8 multiple California statutes. 

9 Ill. Defendants' scheme as set forth above is an unfair business practice in that it offends the 

10 established public policy of California to protect consumers and is unethical, oppressive, unscrupulous, 

11 immoral, and substantially injurious to California consumers. 

12 A. Defendants' Scheme is Unlawful 

13 112. Defendants' scheme violates the California Business and Professions Code, Section 

14 17200, et seq., including Section 650, which makes it illegal for defendants to offer any commission, 

15 preference or other consideration, whether in the form of money or otherwise, as compensation or 

16 inducement for the refen-al of patients, clients or customers. 

17 113. Defendants' scheme aids and abets the violation ofthe California Business and 

18 Professions Code, Section 654.2, which makes it unlawful for any person, including a physician, to 

19 refer a patient to an organization in which that person has a significant beneficial interest unless that 

20 interest is first disclosed in writing to the patient. 

21 114. Defendants' scheme violates the California Penal Code, Section 550(b), which makes it 

22 unlawful to submit a false or misleading claim to an insurer. 

23 115. Defendants' scheme violates the California Insurance Code, Section 750, which 

24 provides that any person who engages in the practice of presenting claims under policies of insurance 

25 and who offers or delivers any rebate, refund, commission or other consideration as compensation or 

26 inducement to any person for the referral or procurement of clients, cases, patients or customers, is 

27 guilty of a crime. 

28 
21 

COMPLAINT 



1 116. Defendants' scheme violates the California Insurance Code, Section 1871.7, which 

2 makes it unlawful to knowingly employ persons to procure patients to obtain benefits under a contract 

3 of insurance or that will be the basis for a claim against an insured individual or his or her insurer. 

4 117. Defendants' scheme, through which BASM and defendants Hashemieh, Samevesht and 

5 Zolfaghari manage the BASM facilities and "cherry-pick" those patients with the most substantial 

6 benefits. afforded by ALIC and other healthcare insurers for surgery at BASM facilities (a practice 

7 which ALIC believes Pacific Heights similarly follows), violates directly or indirectly California's 

8 Business and Professions Code Sections 205.2, 2400, 2408, 2409, and 2410 (California's policy against 

9 the corporate practice ofmedicine)(see also California Corporate Code Sections 13401, 13401.3, and 

10 1340.5), which are designed to protect the public from possible abuses stemming from commercial 

11 exploitation of the practice of medicine. 

12 B. Defendants' Scheme is Unfair 

13 118. Defendants' scheme additionally is unfair because it deprives ALIC's members of 

14 knowledge of the true cost of their healthcare, and other material information, necessary for those 

15 members to intelligently exercise their personal options to maximize their healthcare and minimize the 

16 costs associated with those choices. 

17 119. Defendants' scheme likewise is unfair because the scheme increases the cost of 

18 healthcare for ALIC's members because, as set forth above, they are responsible for a higher 

19 contribution and/or paying a higher percentage ofthe costs of the serv~ices provided by the out-of-

20 network provider than had the same service been received from an in-network provider, per the terms 

21 of their plan or policy. Indeed, the billed costs by the defendant BASM facilities and Pacific Heights 

22 may exceed ALIC's in-network negotiated rates ten-fold or more. 

23 120. Additionally, defendants' scheme is unfair because their fmancial exploitation of 

24 ALIC's network of subscribers and participating physicians has eroded-- and will continue to erode--

25 the case volume and consequent income of ALIC's contracted physicians, hospitals and ancillary 

26 medical facilities in the geographic vicinity of each of the defendants. 

27 

28 
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1 121. Thus, as a consequence of defendants' scheme, the financial viability of ALIC' s 

2 contracted physicians, medical professionals, hospitals and other ancillary medical facilities is 

3 compromised and their incentive and willingness to remain a part of the ALIC network is dissipated. 

4 122. The increased costs to ALIC attributable to defendants' scheme drives up the cost of 

5 health insurance coverage to the detriment of all ALIC subscriber-employers and members. 

6 C. Defendants' Scheme is Fraudulent 

7 123. ALIC members are likely to be deceived by defendants' scheme because the members 

8 do not understand that the members' referrals to the BASM facilities or Pacific Heights are 

9 substantially due to the inadequately disclosed ownership interests the ALIC participating physician

! 0 investors have in the BASM facilities or Pacific Heights (inadequately disclosed conflicts of interests) 

11 by and through which these physicians receive compensation in substantial amounts far in excess of the 

12 value of their services or other consideration provided by these physicians. 

13 124. Defendants' scheme, as described above generally and in paragraphs 88-93 specifically, 

14 is fraudulent because it results in the BASM facilities submitting to ALIC artificially inflated charges 

15 that constitute fraudulently billing. Each artificially inflated charge submitted by defendants to ALIC 

16 constitutes a misrepresentation that defendants knew to be false and which was made with the purpose, 

17 intent and effect of causing ALIC to reimburse defendants at artificially inflated levels. 

18 125. ALIC reasonably relied upon these artificially inflated charges in reimbursing the 

19 defendant facilities for procedures these defendants performed for ALIC's members, resulting in harm 

20 to ALIC. 

21 126. The BASM ASCs' scheme alone already has resulted in their receipt of approximately 

22 $23 million for approximately 1,900 procedures, the costs for which should have only approximated $3 

23 million-- a 771% increase. 

24 127. Pursuant to Sections 17200 and 17203 of the California Business and Professions Code, 

25 ALIC is entitled to an Order enjoining each of the defendants from their unfair competitive acts. 

26 128. Further, as a direct and proximate cause of defendants' violation of the UCL, defendants 

27 and each of them have been unjustly enriched and should be required to make restitution to ALIC or to 

28 disgorge their ill-gotten gains pursuant to the UCL Section 17203. 
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1 129. ALIC demands judgment against defendants and each of them for injunctive relief 

2 ordering defendants and each of them to cease the illegal, unfair and/or fraudulent practices complained 

3 ofherein, restitution and/or disgorgement of funds received by defendants and each ofthem as alleged 

4 herein. 

5 130. As a result of defendants' scheme, ALIC has suffered harm as described in paragraphs 

6 88-93 and 98-106. 

7 131. Further, as a direct and proximate cause of defendants' violation of the UCL, defendants 

8 and each of them have been unjustly emiched and should be required to make restitution to ALIC or to 

9 disgorge their ill-gotten gains pursuant to the UCL Section 17203. 

10 132. ALIC demands judgment against defendants and each ofthem for injunctive relief 

11 ordering defendants and each of them to cease the illegal, unfair and/or fraudulent practices complained 

12 ofherein, restitution and/or disgorgement of funds received by defendants and each ofthem as alleged 

13 herein. 

14 SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION: 
Intentional Interference with ALIC's Contractual Relations with its Members 

15 (Against All Defendants) 

16 133. ALIC incorporates each of the foregoing paragraphs as though set forth at length. 

17 134. At all times complained of herein; ALIC maintained valid contractually binding health 

18 benefit plans with its members. 

19 13 5. At all times complained of herein, defendants and each of them were aware of these 

20 contractually binding health benefit plans. 

21 136. Defendants and each of them intentionally undertook the foregoing acts to induce a 

22 breach or disruption of these contractual relationships. 

23 13 7. The acts complained of herein as against defendants and each of them resulted in a 

24 breach or disruption of these contracts. 

25 138. Defendants' interference with ALIC's members is wrongful and has been done-- and 

26 continues to be done without any right or privilege to do so. 

2 7 13 9. As a result of defendants' scheme, ALI C has been caused to suffer those damages set 

28 forth in the foregoing paragraphs. 
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1 140. Each of the defendants formed and operated a conspiracy in support and in furtherance 

of the unlawful scheme described above, engaged.in the wrongful conduct described above in 

furtherance of the conspiracy, and caused the damages described above which resulted from 

defendants' wrongful conduct. 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

TIDRD CAUSE OF ACTION: 
Intentional Interference with ALIC's Contractual Relations with its 

In-Network Participating Providers 
(Against All Defendants) 

8 141. ALIC incorporates each ofthe foregoing paragraphs as though set forth at length. 

9 142. At all times complained ofherein, ALIC maintained valid contractual relations with its 

10 participating or contracted in-network physicians, medical professionals, hospitals and other ancillary 

11 medical facilities. 

12 143. At all times complained of herein, defendants and each ofthem were aware of these 

13 contractually binding relationships. 

14 144. Defendants and each of them intentionally undertook the foregoing acts to induce a 

15 breach or disruption of these contractual relationships. 

16 145. The acts complained ofherein as against defendants and each of them resulted in a 

17 breach or disruption of these contracts. 

18 146. Defendants' interference with ALIC's contractual relations with its participating or 

19 contracted in-network providers is wrongful and has been done-- and continues to be done·-- without 

20 any right or privilege to do so. 

21 14 7. As a result of defendants' scheme, ALI C has been caused to suffer those damages set 

22 forth in the foregoing paragraphs. 

23 148. Each ofthe defendants formed and operated a conspiracy in support and in furtherance 

24 of the unlawful scheme described above, engaged in the wrongful conduct described above in 

25 furtherance of the conspiracy, and caused the damages described above which resulted from 

26 defendants' wrongful conduct. 

27 

28 
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2 

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION: 
Fraud 

(Against All Defendants) 

3 149. ALIC incorporates each ofthe foregoing paragraphs as though set forth at length. 

4 150. The California Civil Code, Section 1709 provides that one who willfully deceives 

5 another with intent to induce him to alter his position to his injury or risk is liable for any damage 

6 which he thereby suffers. 

7 151. Defendants' scheme as set forth above has been carried out with the intent to induce 

8 ALIC -- and has induced ALIC --to pay each defendant BASM facility and Pacific Heights for the 

9 services their ASC rendered to ALIC members in an amount in excess of the value of the service 

10 rendered or in an amount which otherwise fails to reflect the defendant's deceitful purported waiver or 

11 reduction of the contribution and/or other amounts due from the member under his/her contract with 

12 ALIC. 

13 152. Defendants submission ofhealth insurance claim forms to ALIC for their stated charge 

14 without disclosing their waiver of coinsurance and other patient responsibility is fraudulent because the 

15 charge in the form overstates the facility defendant's charge for services. 

16 153. Because defendants at all relevant times intended to forgive the ALIC member's 

17 coinsurance, deductibles and/or other patient responsibility when they submitted health insurance claim 

18 forms to and for payment by ALIC, the defendants knew the statement of fees included in each form 

19 was false. 

20 154. As a result of defendants' scheme, ALIC has been caused to suffer those damages set 

21 forth in the foregoing paragraphs. 

22 155. Each of the defendants formed and operated a conspiracy in support and in furtherance 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

of the unlawful scheme described above, engaged in the wrongful conduct described above in 

furtherance of the conspiracy, and caused the damages described above which resulted from 

defendants' wrongful conduct. 

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION: 
Declaratory Judgment 

(Against All Defendants) 

28 156. ALIC incorporates each of the foregoing paragraphs as though set forth at length. 
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1 157. ALIC is an interested party in the validity and enforcement ofthe provisions of its 

2 benefit plans that pertain to the financial responsibility of ALIC members and ALIC with respect to the 

3 payment of charges submitted by non-participating providers, where there exists an actual controversy 

4 relating to the legal rights and duties of the parties. 

5 158. ALIC therefore seeks a declaration of rights and duties of ALIC under its benefit plans 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

to pay any portion of any charge submitted by a non-participating provider who, inter alia, employs a 

patient referral policy in violation of California law and relieves the ALIC member of the obligation to 

pay all or a portion of the non-participating provider's charge. 

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION: 
Unjust Enrichment 

(Against All Defendants) 

11 159. ALIC incorporates each of the foregoing paragraphs as though set forth at length. 

12 160. Defendants and each of them have availed themselves ofthe benefit plans established by 

13 ALIC to divert ALIC member patients to one or more of the out-of-network facilities owned and/or 

14 operated by defendants and/or their agents, the effect of which results in defendants, and each of them, 

15 waiving the member's coinsurance and otherwise relieving the member from any obligation for its 

16 charge, and receiving substantial fmancial benefits at the expense of ALIC. 

17 161. In connection with the conduct complained of herein, the BASM ASCs' scheme alone 

18 has resulted in their receipt of approximately $23 million for approximately 1900 procedures, the costs 

19 for which should have only approximated $3 million-- a 771% increase. 

20 162. Defendants, and each of them, knowingly and willingly accepted those monetary 

21 benefits from ALIC. 

22 163. Under the circumstances, it would be inequitable for defendants, and each ofthem, to 

23 retain such benefits at the expense of ALIC. 

24 164. ALIC is entitled to recover fi:om defendants and each ofthem all amounts wrongfully 

25 collected and improperly retained by defendants, plus interest thereon. 

26 165. As a direct and proximate cause of defendants' unjust enrichment, ALIC has suffered 

27 injury and is entitled to reimbursement, restitution and disgorgement from defendants and each of them 

28 ofthe benefits conferred by ALIC. 
27 
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1 166. As a direct and proximate result of defendants' misconduct as set forth herein, 

2 defendants have been unjustly enriched. 

3 PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

4 WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays for judgment and relief as follows: 

5 

6 

1. 

2. 

Entering judgment in favor of plaintiff and against defendants and each of them; 

As to the First Cause of Action, plaintiff seeks injunctive relief ordering defendants and 

7 each of them to cease the illegal, unfair and/or fraudulent practices complained of herein, a declaration 

8 that such practices are illegal, unfair and/or fraudulent, restitution and/or disgorgement of funds 

9 received by defendants. 

10 3. As to the Second, Third and Fourth Causes of Action, plaintiff seeks an award of 

11 damages. 

12 4. As to the Sixth Cause of Action, plaintiff seeks and award of restitution and/or 

13 disgorgement. 

14 5. As to the Fifth Cause of Action, plaintiff seeks a declaration by the Court of rights and 

15 duties of ALIC under its benefit plans to pay any portion of any charge submitted by a non-

16 participating provider who, inter alia, employs a patient referral policy in violation of Califomia law 

17 and relieves the ALIC member of the obligation to pay all or a portion of the non-participating 

18 provider's charge. 

19 6. That any award of damages and/or restitution/disgorgement be granted jointly and 

20 severally, in an amount to be determined at trial, with prejudgment interest at the maximum rate 

21 allowed by law; 

22 7. Attomeys fees pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure§ 1021.5, because the 

23 relief sought herein, if granted, will vindicate important rights affecting the public interest, including, . 

24 but not limited to California's proscriptions against the practices summarized in Paragraphs 3 and 4 

25 above, and described specifically throughout this Complaint. 

26 

27 

28 

8. Grant such other and further relief as may be just and proper. 

28 
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1 JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

2 ALIC demands a jury trial of all triable issues. 

3 Date: February 2, 2012 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Respectfully submitted, 

BERMAN DEV ALERIO 

By: " 
Christopher T. Heffelfin r 

Joseph J. Tabacco, Jr. 
Matthew Ruan 
One California Street, Suite 900 
San Francisco, CA 94111 
Telephone: (415) 433-3200 
Facsimile: (415) 433-6382 

Richard A. Sprague (application pending 
for pro hac vice) 

Joseph R. Podraza, Jr. (application pending 
for pro hac vice) 

Lawrence R. Woehrle (application pending 
for pro hac vice) 

SPRAGUE & SPRAGUE 
135 S. 19th Street, Suite 400 
Philadelphia, PA 19103 
Telephone: (215) 561-7681 
Facsimile: (215) 561-6913 

Counsel for Plaintiff Aetna Life Insurance Company on 
Its Own Behalf and as Claims Administrator for Self
Funded Plan Sponsors 
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